
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 4, 2014 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Christine M. Hanley, Acting Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Richard Skaff 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Rich Holmer at 6:310p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Wikle moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except 
that Direct Schaap abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes) because he was absent at the August 
meeting.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 7, 2014 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any.  (None.) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 


Public comment was made by Richard Skaff re Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:34 p.m.) Presentation on medical disability water rates (Richard Skaff).  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Richard Skaff made a presentation to the Board.  
Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken, but this item was 
continued for further discussion at the October Board meeting. 


 
B. (7:11 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-17, Accepting Offer to Purchase 


District property at 14335 Woods Avenue, Guerneville.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 14-17, 
Authorizing the General Manager to Execute the Sale of the Parcel at 14335 Woods 
Avenue, Guerneville to Stacy Jardine.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, with 
Director Schaap abstaining from the vote.    


 
C. (7:13 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Sales of District property at 17448 River Lane, 


Guerneville to the Russian River Recreation and Park District.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Directors Robb-Wilder and Lipinski made additional comments.  
Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by legal counsel Robin Donoghue.  Further 
discussion ensued.  No action was taken, but this item was continued for further 
discussion at  the October Board meeting.   


 
D. (7:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Re-Funding.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Comments were made by legal counsel Robin Donoghue.  Further 
discussion ensued.  No action was taken, but this item was continued for further 
discussion at the October Board meeting. 


 
E. (7:51 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2013-14 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
F. (8:03 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Cell tower rental consultant.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Comments were made 
by legal counsel Robin Donoghue.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to approve Resolution 14-18, Approving a Site Marketing Agreement for 
Professional Services for Leasing District Property for Cell Tower and Other 
Communication Purposes with Sunkay Associates and Authorizing the General Manager 
to Sign after Legal Counsel Review of the Agreement.  Further discussion ensued.  
Director Wikle seconded the motion, but amended it to include a second contingency: ". . 
. after Legal Counsel Review of the Agreement and after the General Manager's Review 
of Sunkay Associates' Reputation" (underlined text added).  Director Robb-Wilder 
accepted the amendment.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:17 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory Testing. 
2. Leaks 
3. Water Production and Sales 
4. Flow at Hacienda 
5. 2015 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 


 2







 3


8. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:37 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:37 p.m.) 
 
At 8:37 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:39 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:39 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 


Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 
(No action or discussion on this item.) 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:49 p.m.) 
 
1. ADA and District Title II requirements 
2. USDA Bond Re-Funding 
3. 17448 River Lane property 
4. Cell tower rental consultant 
5. CIP 2016 design contract 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:17 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:37 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:37 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:49 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
October 2, 2014, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 4, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be attached 
as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that item during the Board 
meeting 


 







F. Approval of Resolution 14-20, Providing for Destruction of Certain District 
Records 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Presentation on District Responsibility re Americans with 


Disabilities Act (ADA) (District Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue) (Est. time: 20 
min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 14-18 Authorizing Approval of USDA 


Rescheduling Agreement (Est. time 20 min) 
 
C.   Discussion/Action re Res. 14-19, Approving an Agreement for Engineering 


Services for CIP 2016 with Coastland Engineering Inc. and Authorizing the 
General Manager to Sign (Est. time 15min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Sale of District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville to 


the Russian River Recreation and Parks District (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
E.   Discussion/Action re Res. 14-21, Approving an Agreement for Professional 


Services with Open Spatial Corporation to Provide for Hosted GIS of District 
Facilties and Related Services, and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign 
(Est. time 15 min.) 


 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


  
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 Subject: Destruction of Records 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 14-20, Providing for Destruction of Certain District Records. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


Approximately $250.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


Resolution 14-20 provides a one-time authorization to destroy the records identified.  The time periods 
reflected in the Resolution are similar to those approved in previous years.  
 







Resolution No. 14-20 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN 


DISTRICT RECORDS 
 


 WHEREAS, the District is desirous of destroying those records not required to be 
maintained by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Policies and Procedures do not provide complete 
guidelines for the destruction of records. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager be 
authorized to destroy the following records: 


 


Record 
Retained 


Period 
Destroy Records 
Older Than . . .  


Bank Deposit Reports (daily) 2 years July 1, 2012 


Bank Statements 5 years July 1, 2009 


Budget Working Papers 3 years July 1, 2011 


Tax/Unemployment Records 4 years July 1, 2010 


Payroll expanded detail 5 years July 1, 2009 


Timesheets 2 years July 1, 2012 


Customer Paper Files 3 years July 1, 2011 


Customer Receipts/ Payment 
Stubs 


2 years July 1, 2012 


Claims against the District 5 years July 1, 2009 


Insurance claims 10 years July 1, 2004 


Attendance records 2 years December 31, 2011 


Field Production Reports 5 years July 1, 2009 


Meter reading books 7 years July 1, 2007 


Leak Tags 2 years July 1, 2012 


Vendor files 5 years July 1, 2009 


Assessment files 7 years July 1, 2007 


Workers Compensation 
claims 


6 years from 
the date claim 


is closed 


July 1, 2008 


 
 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any records within the time periods identified 
above which are necessary to resolve an outstanding claim or litigation shall be retained. 


***************************** 
 
 







Resolution 14-20  2  
October 2, 2014 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on October 2, 2014, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Richard Holmer       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 





		Item III-D - Destruction of Records

		Approximately $250. 



		Item III-D.1 RES 14-20 -- Destruction of Records






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: DISTRICT AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) RESPONSIBILITIES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation by District Legal Counsel Robin 
Donoghue re District responsibilities for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none     
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Robin Dohoghue will have a short handout of her comments at the Board meeting or 
shortly prior which can be distributed by email.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 14-18 WHICH APPROVES A 
RESCHEDULING AGREEMENT WITH THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA) 
FOR RESOLUTION OF USDA BOND REFINANCING ISSUES AND A SIDE LETTER 
CLARIFYING CERTAIN LANGUAGE IN THE AGREEMENT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-18 which approves a Rescheduling 
Agreement with U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) for the remainder of the USDA 
2003 Series Bonds along with a Side Letter which clarifies some objectionable language 
in the Rescheduling Agreement. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $900,000 savings over the life of the repayment; 
$8,000 annual savings in first 19 years.     
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District refinanced its USDA bond debt last summer (2013). Because of the 
instability of the bond market, the District was only able to refinance the first 20 years 
of 29 years remaining on the series 2003 bonds leaving a remainder of approximately  
$1.6 million in bonds that would have principal due starting in 2033.  At the time of the 
refinancing, the District and its financial advisors Brandis Tallman and Meyers Nave 
Bond Counsel understood via written emails that USDA concurred with the District’s 
refinancing approach.  In March 2014 we heard from USDA that the refinancing 
approach was not acceptable to them; the main issue appeared to be nonpayment of 
principal during the first 20 years or so of the remaining 2003 series bonds.   
 
After much discussion and exchange of emails USDA has proposed resolution of this 
misunderstanding.   Their proposal is to refinance the Series 2003 bonds remainder for 
40 years at 2.375%.  Compared to the refinancing that we thought went into effect a 
year ago, the USDA proposal would reduce the District’s annual payments by 
approximately $8,000 per year in the first 20 years, substantially reduce the payments 
for the next 9 years – the bonds that were not called – but add 11 years to the total 
payment period.  Their proposal saves the District approximately $900,000 over the life 
of the total repayment period which adds to the savings already accrued with the initial 
refinancing (approximately $925,000). The proposed solution includes deferring the 
FY2014-2015 payment – the 2015 fiscal year payment would be skipped and the next 
payment would be in August 2015.  This is a good resolution of this situation.   







Resolution 14-18, USDA Rescheduling Agreement 2 
October 2, 2014 


 
The Rescheduling Agreement (Exhibit A) required by USDA to put this resolution into 
effect contains inaccurate language regarding the facts of the situation and is 
objectionable to the District as well.  If the agreement is left alone, third parties who 
have not been a part of this resolution may be led to the conclusion that the District has 
not fulfilled its financial obligations with respect to repaying its USDA debt and that is 
not correct.  USDA staff have informed us that changing the language of the 
Rescheduling Agreement is not possible at this time because it is a required form 
agreement and so we are proposing a Side Letter that corrects the inaccurate language.  
The Side Letter is still under review by USDA; we anticipate agreement by both parties 
to something substantially similar to this letter (Exhibit B, it may be on District 
letterhead rather than USDA, for example).   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 14-18 which approves the Rescheduling 
Agreement and the Side Letter clarifying the objectionable language in the 
Rescheduling Agreement.   
 
 
 







 


RESOLUTION 14-18 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A RESCHEDULING 


AGREEMENT WITH US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND A SIDE LETTER 


CLARIFYING CERTAIN LANGUAGE IN THE AGREEMENT 
 


 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) entered into a 
partial refinancing of its US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Series 2003 bonds in 
August 2013 and believed, through verbal and written communications, that USDA 
concurred with all aspects of the refinancing, including repayment of the remainder of 
the Series 2003 bonds; and 


WHEREAS, in March 2014 USDA communicated to the District that the 
repayment approach was unacceptable to the USDA; and 


WHEREAS, the two parties, District and USDA, have reached an resolution of 
the misunderstanding through the approval of a Rescheduling Agreement, attached as 
Exhibit A based on a form provided by USDA; and  


WHEREAS, the general form of the resolution is rescheduling the District’s 
payments on the remaining debt as shown in Attachment A which includes repayment 
of the remaining principal of $1,611,000 and accumulated interest of $36,874.90 for a 
total principal repayment of 1,647,874.00 at an interest rate of 2.375%; and 


WHEREAS, the form of the agreement required by USDA contains language 
objectionable to the District in that it states the District is “in default under that bond” and 
uses the term “delinquent payment”, and cannot be readily changed to the agreement of 
both parties; and 


WHEREAS, this discrepancy can be addressed by a Side Letter, attached as 
Exhibit B, to the satisfaction of both parties. 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District, as follows: 


Section 1. Rescheduling Agreement.  The Board hereby approves the 
Rescheduling Agreement, attached at Exhibit A. 


Section 2. Side Letter.  The Board hereby approves a Side Letter in 
substantial conformance to the Side Letter, attached as Exhibit B, with the 
understanding that this letter is still under review by USDA and may have some minor 
changes.   


Section 3. The General Manager is authorized to sign the Rescheduling 
Agreement and Side Letter on behalf of the District.   


 
 







Resolution 14-18, USDA Rescheduling Agreement and Side Letter 2 
October 2, 2014 


2 
 


Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the 
date of its passage and adoption. 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
October 2, 2014, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 







Exhibit A. Rescheduling Agreement 
 


Staff Instruction 1782-1 
                          Exhibit E 


 Page 1  
 
In accordance with § 1782.11 of this Staff Instruction, the following 
format may be used to document a rescheduling agreement with the 
borrower.  


 
 
 


UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 


 
RESCHEDULING AGREEMENT  


(Public Bodies) 
 
Effective Date:  _9-1-2014___ 
 
State:  ___California__County:  ___________Sonoma____________________ 
 
Case No.:  _04-009-0680240474 Fund Code:  91__ Loan No.:  _02_______ 
 
Amount Rescheduled:  $___1,647,874.00  Interest Rate:  __2.3750___ 
 
The undersigned, a public body entity (herein called “Borrower”), 
being indebted for a loan made by the Rural Utilities Service, United 
States Department of Agriculture, (herein called “Government”), as 
evidenced by a bond or other debt instrument (herein called the 
“bond”) dated April 29th, 2003, with an outstanding balance in the 
principal sum of $1,611,000.00 plus accrued interest as of September 
1st, 2014, in the sum of $36,874.90, and being in default under that 
bond, hereby agrees with the Government as follows: 
 
1. AMOUNT:  The amount of the debt rescheduled is 


$1,647,874.90, consisting of $1,611,000.00 principal plus 
__$36,874.90__accrued interest.  This amount represents: 
 
 _____ the delinquent amount only 
 ____ the amount of the outstanding debt plus the delinquent 
amount. 
 


2. PAYMENT SCHEDULE:  The first installment of the rescheduled 
amount, including interest at the bond rate shown above, in the 
amount of $_25,147.00_ will be due and payable on ____September 
1st, 2015; thereafter, _SEE ATTACHED SCHEDULE regular 
installments, each in the amount of $___PER SCHEDULE, will be due 
and payable on ______September 1st of each ___YEAR____________ 
until the rescheduled amount or, if the entire debt is being 
rescheduled, the entire indebtedness due under the bond, has  


 
 







Staff Instruction 1782-1 
Exhibit E 


Page 2 
 
 
been fully repaid.  The final installment, if not sooner paid, 
shall be due and payable as stated in the bond.  Regular payments 
due in accordance with the bond ____ are _XX__ are not required 
in addition to the payments specified above. 


 
3. The Government, as consideration for this agreement, will 
not enforce the remedies available to it by reason of any payment 
default occurring prior to the effective date of the agreement. 


 
4 This agreement establishes a revised payment schedule to 
bring the delinquent loan account involved current, and nothing 
herein shall be construed as effecting any of the terms or 
conditions of the bond other than the payment schedule or suggest 
the satisfaction of the outstanding bond. 
 
5. Upon default by the borrower on any terms or conditions of 
this agreement or other agreement, or violation of other rights 
of the Government as a lender, the Government at its option may 
declare the entire indebtedness immediately due and payable and 
exercise any and all rights and remedies available to it. 


 
By resolution duly adopted on the ____________ day of _______________, 
20 __, the Borrower  
 
has authorized its ___________________________________________ to 
execute this  
 
agreement and its ______________________________ to affix its 
corporate seal. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      ________________________________ 
        Name of Borrower 
 
 
BY _______________________________ BY
 ________________________________ 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
 ________________________________ 
  (Title)       (Title) 
 
 
 
 







Exhibit B.  Proposed Side Letter 


[UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE 


LETTERHEAD] 
 


 


________, 2014 


VIA EMAIL AND FEDERAL EXPRESS 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Board of Directors 
17081 Highway 116, Suite B  
Guerneville, CA 95446 
 


Re: Resolution 03-15 entitled “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF 1990, SERIES 2003” (the “Bond 
Resolution”), Resolution 03-16 relating to Loan Resolution (RUS Bulletin 1780-
27) (the “Loan Resolution”) and Resolution __ relating to the Rescheduling 
Agreement (Staff Instruction 1782-1) (the “Rescheduling Resolution”)  
  


 
Dear Board of Directors: 
 
 In connection with the above-referenced matter, this letter agreement (this “Letter 
Agreement”) by and between Sweetwater Springs Water District (“Borrower”) and Rural Utilities 
Service, United States Department of Agriculture (“Government”)  (collectively, the “Parties”) 
confirms the Parties’ agreement that notwithstanding  formulaic language in Government’s  
Rescheduling Resolution stating that Borrower is in default of its payment obligations under the 
Bonds (as defined in the Bond Resolution) issued under the Bond Resolution, and that the 
proposed revised repayment schedule will bring the “delinquent” loan current, Borrower is in fact 
neither in payment default nor delinquency, and has never received any notice from Government 
to that effect.  Rather, the purpose of the Rescheduling Agreement is simply to provide a re-
amortization of the Borrower’s loan under the Loan Agreement at a reduced interest rate, to settle 
a misunderstanding between the Parties that occurred during the refinancing of Borrower’s 
USDA bonds that was undertaken in August 2013. 
 
 In addition, the Parties agree that Government shall not report the Rescheduling 
Agreement to any rating agency or any financial institution that may provide credit to Borrower 
and, should any such rating agency or financial institution become aware of the Rescheduling 
Agreement and negatively rate or provide  or decline to provide credit on that basis, Government 
shall use its best efforts to remedy the harm caused to Borrower as a result to references to 
“default” and “delinquent” in Government’s form Rescheduling Agreement.  
 


If Borrower agrees with and accepts the foregoing, please indicate acceptance of the 
terms of this Letter Agreement by executing a copy of the same and returning it to the 







 


 2


undersigned.  This Letter Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and may be executed and 
delivered by facsimile transmission, which facsimile signatures shall be treated as originals. 
 


 
GOVERNMENT: 


 
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE, UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
 


 
By: __________________________ 
Name: __________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


By: Office of General Counsel 
Name: __________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 


 
 


AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED 


BORROWER: 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
By: __________________________ 
Name: __________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 
 


 


 
2333040.2  







Maturity Date Principal 2.375% Interest Rate
(September 1) Amount ($) Interest Annual Payment


2014


1 2015 25,147.00  $39,137.03 $64,284.03


2 2016 25,744.00  $38,540.10 $64,284.10


3 2017 26,355.00  $37,929.00 $64,284.00


4 2018 26,981.00  $37,303.38 $64,284.38


5 2019 27,622.00  $36,662.91 $64,284.91


6 2020 28,278.00  $36,007.22 $64,285.22


7 2021 28,950.00  $35,335.96 $64,285.96


8 2022 29,637.00  $34,648.76 $64,285.76


9 2023 30,341.00  $33,945.24 $64,286.24


10 2024 31,062.00  $33,225.01 $64,287.01


11 2025 31,799.00  $32,487.67 $64,286.67


12 2026 32,555.00  $31,732.83 $64,287.83


13 2027 33,328.00  $30,960.05 $64,288.05


14 2028 34,119.00  $30,168.92 $64,287.92


15 2029 34,930.00  $29,359.00 $64,289.00


16 2030 35,759.00  $28,529.85 $64,288.85


17 2031 36,608.00  $27,681.00 $64,289.00


18 2032 37,478.00  $26,812.00 $64,290.00


19 2033 38,368.00  $25,922.35 $64,290.35


20 2034 39,279.00  $25,011.58 $64,290.58


21 2035 40,212.00  $24,079.17 $64,291.17


22 2036 41,167.00  $23,124.62 $64,291.62


23 2037 42,145.00  $22,147.40 $64,292.40


24 2038 43,146.00  $21,146.97 $64,292.97


25 2039 44,171.00  $20,122.78 $64,293.78


26 2040 45,220.00  $19,074.27 $64,294.27


27 2041 46,294.00  $18,000.85 $64,294.85


28 2042 47,393.00  $16,901.94 $64,294.94


29 2043 48,519.00  $15,776.93 $64,295.93


30 2044 49,671.00  $14,625.20 $64,296.20


31 2045 50,851.00  $13,446.12 $64,297.12


32 2046 52,058.00  $12,239.04 $64,297.04


33 2047 53,295.00  $11,003.28 $64,298.28


34 2048 54,561.00  $9,738.18 $64,299.18


35 2049 55,856.00  $8,443.03 $64,299.03


36 2050 57,183.00  $7,117.12 $64,300.12


37 2051 58,541.00  $5,759.72 $64,300.72


38 2052 59,931.00  $4,370.09 $64,301.09


39 2053 61,355.00  $2,947.45 $64,302.45


40 2054 61,965.90  $1,491.02 $63,456.92


TOTAL: 1,647,874.90  922,955.04  2,570,829.94 


Attachment A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Rescheduled Bond Principal Amounts





		Item V-B - Res 14-18 USDA Bond Rescheduling Agmt

		Item V-B.1 - Res 14-18 USDA Bond Reschduling Agmt

		Item V-B.2 Exh A Rescheduling Agreement 8-29-2014

		Item V-B.3 - SSWD - RPD Draft Side Letter Agreement re USDA 091814

		Item V-B.4 - Att A.USDA Solution Payment Schedule

		USDA Solution (clean)








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 2, 2014  
 
Subject:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 14-19 AWARDING A CONTRACT TO 
COASTLAND ENGINEERING FOR DESIGN SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE 2016 CIP  


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-19 awarding a contract to 
Coastland Engineering for design and construction management and inspection 
services for the FY 2016 Capital Improvement Program.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The Coastland proposed cost is $211,178.  Extra services 
allowance of $10,000 result in a not to exceed amount of $221,178.  Funds for this 
contract are included in the FY 2015 Budget.     
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with a priority aim of 
reducing system water losses.   We have had an annual CIP or more every year since 
2008 and we take our annual projects from the approved Capital Improvement Plan.  
The current Plan is the 2014-2019 Plan which was reviewed last winter.  Slated for the 
2016 CIP is the Canyon 1 Rd. Project which is replacement of  approximately 3,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 86 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Lane, and Memory Park Rd in Rio 
Nido (Table 1).  This project is in the budget for award of contract at the end of this fiscal year.     
 
The District requires professional engineering services for design, and construction 
management and inspection of the construction.  Staff has been in discussions with 
Coastland Engineering (Coastland) for these services and have received the attached 
proposal (Exhibit A).  Coastland has done these services for the District since 2011 and 
we have been very satisfied with their work.  By undertaking the design element of this 
project relatively soon, the project can be ready to start construction in late spring 2015 
or early next summer.   
 
Completion of these projects will reduce system leakage and improve water service and 
fire protection.   The estimated total cost of the FY 2016 CIP according to Table 1 is  
$890,000, but we expect it to be more than that as the Table I estimate is fairly old and 
the project scope has been increased by staff inspection of the project area – there are 
more services that originally listed and longer lengths of water mainline.  Also the 
affected roads will need to be resurfaced and that is not in the original cost estimate.   
The FY 2015 Budget includes $800,000 for the construction contract and $175,000 for 
design and construction management and inspection.   
 







RESOLUTION 14-19, DESIGN SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR 2016 CIP 2  
October 2, 2014 
 


 


The cost of the work proposed by Coastland is $211,178, split $75,181 for design 
services and $135,997 for construction management and inspection services.    This is 
an appropriate cost for the amount of work requested.  Resolution 14-19 also requests 
$10,000 for additional extra services for a total not-to-exceed amount of $221,178.   
 
While approval of this contract will create an obligation to pay the contract amount, 
most of the cost of the contract will occur in FY 2015-2016, as that is when most of the 
construction management and inspection services will be needed.  The design costs of 
the contract should be fully expended in this fiscal year.        
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2016 CIP (from Approved 2014-2019 CIP)   


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost per Service 
2016      


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 
3,900 ft of existing mainline and 86 services along 
Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000  $10,348  


 
 







RESOLUTION 14-19 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 


FY 2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) WITH COASTLAND 


ENGINEERING INC. (COASTLAND) AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


SIGN  
 


 
WHEREAS, the FY 2016 CIP consists of replacement of  approximately 3,900 ft of 


existing mainline and 86 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Lane, and Memory Park Rd in 
Rio Nido; and  
 
 WHEREAS, completion of these projects will reduce system leakage, improve water 
service and fire protection; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has need of consulting engineering services for design 
and construction management and inspection for the 2016 CIP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Coastland Engineering has done the engineering services for design 
and construction management and inspection for several recent CIP projects since 
2011; and: 
 


WHEREAS, staff has been very satisfied with the performance of Coastland 
Engineering for the design and construction management and inspection services for 
these projects; and 
 


WHEREAS, Coastland proposed an amount of $211,178 for the FY 2016 CIP 
design, construction management and inspection services; and 


 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed this proposal and finds it responsive to the 


District’s need for the FY 2016 CIP design, construction management and inspection 
services and the price proposed is fair for the needed amount of consulting services; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate to include an allowance of $10,000 for extra or 
changed work that may be authorized only by express permission or direction by the 
General Manager.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The Agreement for Engineering Services for the 2016 CIP with Coastland, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved in the sum of $211,178 with 
an extra services allowance of $10,000, for a total Not to Exceed Amount of $221,178; 
and 







Resolution 14-19. Agreement for Engineering Services with Coastland for 2016 CIP 
October 2, 2014          2 
 


 


 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
October 2, 2014, by the following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle       


 
 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 


 







1400 Neotomas Avenue Santa Rosa, CA 95405  707.571.8005 Tel  707.571.8037 Fax  


SANTA ROSA    |||  AUBURN


September 23, 2014 


Mr. Steve Mack 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
17081 Highway 116, Suite B 
Guerneville, CA 95446 


Subject: Proposal to Provide Engineering Design, Construction Management and 
Inspection for District FY 2016 Capital Project 


Dear Steve: 


Coastland appreciates the opportunity to assist the Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) 
with engineering design, construction management and inspection services associated with the 
District’s Fiscal Year 2016 Capital Project.  Our team has enjoyed working with the District over 
the past few years and looks forward to continuing our working relationship with the District. 


Taking into account our field review of the project site, discussions with you, District staff and 
our recent experience, we have prepared an approach to this project that takes into account the 
District’s specific needs.  Our approach to this project focuses on acting as an extension of 
District staff, providing personal, flexible and responsive service.   We will provide frequent 
updates of project progress and will work closely with District staff to ensure the goals of the 
project are met.   


Feel free to me at (707) 571-8005 or wanger@coastlandcivil.com if you have any questions or 
are in need of additional information.  Thank you for this opportunity and we look forward to 
working with you. 


Sincerely, 


John Wanger, PE 


\\ccesbs\proposal\public\sweetwater springs district\fy 15 project\sweetwater springs district proposal 2016 project final.doc 


Exhibit A



mailto:wanger@coastlandcivil.com





 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Table of Contents 
 


 


 


 


 


TITLE         PAGE  
 
 
Understanding & Approach  .......................................................................................................... 1 
 
 
Scope of Work .............................................................................................................................. 2 
 


Design  .............................................................................................................................. 2 
Construction Management & Inspection  ........................................................................... 4 
Schedule ........................................................................................................................... 9 


 
Work Estimate  .............................................................................................................................. 9 
 


Design  .............................................................................................................................. 9 
Construction Management & Inspection  ........................................................................... 10 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 1 


UNDERSTANDING & APPROACH 
  


The Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) is continuing their ongoing program to replace 
antiquated and undersized water system infrastructure.  The project site identified for fiscal year 
2016 includes water main replacements in Canyon 1 Road, Memory Park Road and Memory 
Lane. The overall length of main to be replaced is approximately 3,900 feet and approximately 
86 water services will be replaced (to the meter.)  This project is intended to improve water 
service flows, improve customer water quality, improve fire protection and reduce water losses 
from leaks, while minimizing maintenance for years to come.  
 
Based on our field review, a newer portion of water main exists from the southerly intersection 
of Canyon 2 Road and Canyon 1 Road to just past the first fire hydrant on Canyon 1 Road.  It is 
our understanding that this initial portion of water main and associated water services off of this 
section of the main will not be replaced.  The new water main will begin just past the first fire 
hydrant and west of the intersection of Canyon 1 Road and Memory Lane.  The overall water 
main size to be replaced in Canyon 1 Road is 6-inch.  Based on the field review there is existing 
sewer and storm drain facilities in the road, as well as portions of the road have natural gas.  
Accordingly, it will be very important to obtain accurate utility information from the various utility 
owners in the project site.  The overall water system in Canyon 1 Road will include a looped 
system that replaces the older 6-inch and 2-inch lines in the road.   The water main replacement 
work will also include replacement of the water main in Upper Canyon 1 Road to its terminus.  
Work in Canyon Road 1 will also include installation of new hydrants at locations to be 
determined by the District and the Fire Department. 
 
For the Work on the northerly branch of Canyon 1 Road it will be important to take into account 
the retaining wall tie-back systems for the retaining wall adjacent to the road, as well as the 
major storm drain crossing at the intersection of Canyon 2 Road and the northerly portion of 
Canyon 1 Road. 
 
In addition to the Canyon 1 Road water main replacements, the District also wants to include 
replacement of the 4-inch line in Memory Lane and the 6-inch line in Memory Park Lane.  From 
our field walk, it is our understanding that a new 6-inch main will be installed in Memory Lane, 
from its intersection with Canyon 1 Road to the 2-inch service to the cabins up the hill.  From 
this point, the main line size will reduce to 2-inch and will extend up to 14490 Memory Lane.  
The three services at 14461 extending up the side driveway will not have to be replaced. 
 
For the work in Memory Park Road, it is our understanding that this project will include design of 
a new 6-inch main in the road from its intersection with Canyon 1 Road to approximately 14494 
memory Park Road.  At this point, the main will reduce to 2-inch and will continue up the road 
and terminate at 14503 Memory Park Road. 
 
General Issues 
 


It is our understanding that because of the number of utility crossings associated with the 
project (sewer and gas utilities), it is the District’s desire to have the pipe installed through open 
trenching (as opposed to directional drilling.)  Some directional drilling may be required for short 
portions (e.g. as the water line crosses the tie-back rods associated with the retaining wall on 
Canyon 1 Road.)  Open trenching will most likely result in requirements to re-pave (overlay) 
Canyon 1 Road, Memory Lane and Memory Park Road.  A final determination will be made by 
the County through the encroachment permit process; however it is anticipated and it is our 
recommendation that the plans should include paving, as well as the cost for repaving should be 
included in the overall project budget.  It is also our understanding that the District would like to 
use HDPE for pipe on this project. 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 2 


We will continue to coordinate with the County during the design stage to ensure that County 
permit requirements are incorporated into the plans.  At the onset of the project, we will also 
coordinate with the County for all plans associated with the sewer lines within the boundaries of 
both projects.  We will also work with the District to generate a Notice of Exemption for the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Based on this understanding of the work required for this project, the following is our scope of 
work: 
 


SCOPE OF WORK - DESIGN 
 
 


The following Scope of Work is based on our understanding of the project details following 
discussions with the District and our detailed site investigation.   


   
Task 1 – Meetings with District Representatives 
 


Immediately after the Notice to Proceed is issued by the District, Coastland will schedule a kick-
off meeting with District staff to gather all background information and complete a thorough site 
review with District Staff to ensure we are aware of all project goals and constraints.  Included in 
this task will be one (1) project kick-off / pre-design meeting to discuss project goals and 
coordination efforts and three (3) progress design review meetings.  
 
Task 2 – Background Information 
 


We will assemble all of the available District, County and Sonoma County Water Agency 
information. Coastland has already conducted one preliminary site review for the purpose of 
preparing this proposal.  Our goal is to further analyze existing site characteristics through 
completion of the site review, observing general site conditions and utilities to identify 
opportunities for improvements.  Our site review will enable us to identify any unusual or special 
conditions that may affect the project design or construction.   
 
Task 3 – Coordination with Agencies 
 


We propose to coordinate with outside utility companies to ensure that all existing facilities, both 
underground and overhead, are identified accurately during the design phase.  This task will 
include writing letters to PG&E, AT&T, Comcast, Ferrell Gas, Sonoma County (storm drain and 
retaining walls), and the Sonoma County Water Agency (sanitary sewer) informing them of the 
project and requesting their facility drawings.   
 
Under this task we will follow up with each utility provider by preparing submittal packages to 
each so they can verify the accuracy of their facilities and the need for relocation. In addition to 
the agencies listed above we will prepare a submittal to the fire chief at the Russian River Fire 
District for review of the proposed fire hydrant locations. 
 
As part of our background research for this proposal, we have reviewed the State’s Geotracker 
website to find out if any of the areas of work are within or adjacent to the project has known 
areas of soil or groundwater contamination.  Per our research, no contamination issues were 
found within the project boundaries.  Accordingly, we do not anticipate having to coordinate with 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board for this project. 
 
As the project is replacement of existing water lines, we anticipate that the project is 
categorically exempt under CEQA.  Accordingly, we will include preparing a Notice of 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 3 


Exemption in accordance with CEQA, and providing this to the District for adoption and 
recordation with the County. 
 
For work proposed within the County right-of-way, we will coordinate with the County to obtain 
an Encroachment Permit.  We have included time for coordination via email and phone 
conversations, as well as a meeting with the County and our Construction Manager to discuss 
feasibility of County requirements during construction.  
 
Task 4 –Surveying  
 


Cinquini & Passarino (CPI) of Santa Rosa will complete a topographic survey to support the 
design efforts for this project.  The District will be provided with conventional and proven ground 
topographic surveys of the project sites.  These topographic surveys may include features such 
as, but not limited to; edges of pavement, buildings, fences, striping and pavement markings, 
utility poles, meter boxes, valve boxes, overhead wires, driveway locations, trees six (6) inches 
and larger, drip line radii, limits of retaining walls, viaduct cross sections, sanitary sewer and 
storm drain facilities including inverts, subsurface utilities marked or found, steps/stairs, trails 
and any other pertinent information that could apply to the project during design. 
 
Topographic surveys will be performed within the apparent public right-of-way throughout the 
project reach.    Record public right-of-way will be drafted and placed on the topographic survey.  
This will include information available through the County’s GIS.  No additional boundary 
surveying should be necessary for this project and therefore not included within this scope of 
work. 
 
CPI will provide Coastland with a map in AutoCAD format showing existing topographic features 
and utilities along the project reach based on the above described approach.   The map will be 
at a 1 inch = 20 feet scale unless otherwise requested.  
 
Task 5 –65% Submittal  
 


Following our background research, utility coordination, survey and field review with District 
staff, we will develop a preliminary design for mainline and service replacement.  We will review 
our approach with District staff to assure all District goals are met.  Based on District input we 
will adjust our approach and prepare a 65% submittal.  The submittal will include all water main 
and services improvements, as well as asphalt overlay and striping plans.  Also included in this 
submittal will be a recommended construction method for the new water main at the culvert 
crossings, sewer crossings and any other challenging crossings discovered in our field 
investigations or gathering background information. We will provide the District with a summary 
of our evaluation of the design options and our findings of the most cost effective and feasible 
design approach at these locations. 
 
The 65% submittal will include three (3) sets of full- size plans, draft technical specifications, 
and an engineer’s estimate of probable construction costs.  We will include submittals to the 
County and utility providers. 
 
Task 6 – 95% Submittal 
 


Following the District’s review of the 65% submittal, we will prepare the 95% submittal.  The 
submittal will address all comments on the 65% submittal and will essentially be a 
comprehensive design package.  The plans will include details for all improvements.  The 
specifications will be complete.  The 95% submittal will include three (3) sets of full-size plans, 
specifications and an engineer’s cost estimate.  Also included in this submittal will be roadway 
improvement limits and the proposed repair methods based on coordination with the County.   
 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 4 


Coastland’s Construction Management Department will perform a constructability review of the 
contract documents.  Through this review, we will help minimize claims and potential change 
orders.   
 
Task 7 - 100% Plans & Specifications 
 


Following the review of the 95% submittal, Coastland will prepare the final construction 
drawings, specifications and estimate signed by a California registered Civil Engineer.  We will 
provide a final electronic submittal to the District for a final review to verify comments have been 
addressed prior to producing the 100% bid documents.  Upon final District review we will 
provide stamped and signed mylar drawings and camera-ready specifications.  An electronic 
copy of the drawings, specifications and final cost estimate will also be provided in both PDF 
and AutoCAD formats.  We will work with the District to determine the number of bid documents 
to reproduce for bidding purposes. 
 
 


Task 8 –Bid Support  
 


Coastland will provide the Notice to Bidders for advertisement in local papers.  We will also 
reproduce and distribute the construction documents to local plan rooms and contractors.  
During the bidding process, we will answer any questions that may arise and maintain a phone 
log of inquiries.  We will prepare any addenda that may be necessary.  Coastland will also 
conduct the bid opening, tabulate results and review the apparent low bidder’s bid package.  As 
part of the bid review we will coordinate with the District’s attorney for review the apparent low 
bidder’s bonds, contractor’s license verification and insurance.  
 
Once the review of the bid has been completed we will prepare a bid summary and forward it to 
the District with our recommendation for bid award.  Please note that the time associated with 
this task does not include any time necessary for bid protests.  If a bid protest is issued by any 
of the other bidders, we can provide this as extra service on a time and materials basis, as the 
time necessary to process the protest is unknown. 
 
 


SCOPE OF WORK - CONSTRUCTION 
 
Task 1 – Contract Award and Design Construction Support 
 
Once awarded, we will provide a draft Notice of Award letter to the District for signature and 
mailing to the low bidder.  Once the low bidder submits all required documents, we will review 
all submitted documents for compliance with the requirements in the Construction Documents 
(bonds, insurance, signed contract, etc.)  Once all information is verified, we will provide the 
District with a draft Notice to Proceed letter to send to the contractor and set up the Pre-
Construction meeting.  
 
Coastland’s Project Engineer will be readily available to coordinate with our construction team to 
provide valuable insight.  The Engineer’s involvement in the construction phase will ensure 
important issues are highlighted and all project design issues are addressed promptly.  
 
Task 2 – Pre-Construction Meeting  
 


Immediately following the approval of all submitted information for award of the construction 
contract, we will schedule and administer the pre-construction meeting. During this meeting we 
will establish lines of communication and decision making roles with all project stakeholders.  
We will discuss safety requirements, team member responsibilities, working hours, quality 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 5 


control procedures, submittal requirements, project schedule, change order and potential claim 
procedures, and safety procedures.   
 
Coastland will be responsible for generating pre-construction meeting invitations including the 
meeting agenda.  Agenda items include lines of communication, public relations, safety, 
submittals, change procedures, payments, progress schedules, contract time, requests for 
information, expectations, and other applicable items.  Coastland will prepare and distribute 
meeting minutes to all parties.   
 
Following the pre-construction meeting, Coastland will continue to work closely with the District 
teams, Design Engineer, and contractor to ensure that all project issues are addressed promptly 
and that the District’s best interests are considered at all times.  
 
Task 3 – Pre-Construction Site Visit and Documentation 
 


Coastland will take pre-construction digital photos of the construction site with special attention 
given to sensitive areas including all private properties adjacent to the project.  We will also 
document residential front yards to ensure all landscaping is returned to its original state.  
Documenting the site prior to construction will help mitigate possible disputes between the 
District, contractor and property owners within or adjacent to the project limits. These photos will 
be logged, labeled and filed with the project files.   
 
Task 4 – Project Start-Up 
 


Coastland will assemble project files in accordance with the District’s standard format for 
administration.  Coastland uses Primavera Contract Manager software as a centralized system 
for document control to create, store, organize, track, and link all project information.  Primavera 
Contract Manager software will distill the constant flow of paperwork to a form that quickly and 
easily identifies trends and critical issues and will help keep the project moving as it helps 
document the work.  The use of Contract Manager reduces administrative costs, facilitates 
clearer communication, enhances the sense of a “team effort,” and reduces the number of 
disputes.  
 
Task 5 - Daily Field Inspections and Documentation 
 


A critical aspect of our services is maintaining close communication with District staff to ensure 
scheduling/quality goals are met.  To help maintain close communication, Coastland’s inspector 
will be accessible to the District at all times at the project site and through the use of email and 
cellular phones.  Coastland’s on-site inspector will examine all construction activities to ensure 
that the contract work adheres to the contract documents, District standards and the established 
schedule. 
   
We will maintain records and provide documentation of the work in the form of daily reports, 
working days statements, weekly summary of construction activities, deficiency lists, and 
progress photographs of construction activities.  Daily reports will describe the contractor’s level 
of effort, specific work being done, started, or completed, and relevant points raised by the 
contractor that may require consideration and response.  We also document proposed change 
orders and claims, important conversations, safety issues or accidents, extra work in progress, 
materials testing performed, information for “as-built” drawings, quantities for progress 
payments, environmental concerns and hazardous materials.   
 
Coastland will provide a digital photo logbook of construction activities, progress, and areas of 
concern or interest.   The photo log will be compiled on CD’s and will identify the location and 
date of each photo.  The log will be maintained through the duration of the project to assure 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 6 


continuity from one week to the next, and will be submitted to the District at the close of the 
project.  
 
Coastland will continually review the specifications and plans to ensure the work is of good 
quality and meets the requirements of the contract documents.  This review can improve 
constructability, reduce costs, eliminate ambiguities and improve clarity. We will immediately 
report any deviation from the approved contract documents.   
 
In summary, our Inspector’s responsibilities include: 
 


    Inspect the contractor’s work for conformance to the contract documents, codes, 
regulations and District standards on a daily basis.   


    Prepare and submit daily inspection reports that document all job site activities.  


    Serve as a daily contact for the contractor as to performance of the construction. 


    Respond promptly to District requests. 


    Participate in meetings with District staff, contractor and other involved agencies. 


    Verify construction material quantities.  


    Monitor traffic control procedures to make certain that access is maintained during 
construction. 


    Distribute notifications to impacted public regarding the status of construction.  


    Document construction activities with photographs and maintain a photo log.  


    Respond to calls from the public promptly and log any complaints in a timely manner.   


    Prepare and maintain current redlined construction drawings, documenting unforeseen 
field conditions and changes to check the contractor’s record drawings. 


    Identify actual and potential problems and resolve issues by proposing field changes to 
avoid any delays.  


    Document and maintain complete field files containing construction period 
correspondences, changes, discussions with contractor, memos, reports, and other 
pertinent items.  


 


Task 6 – Progress Meetings & Coordination  
 


Coastland will conduct weekly or as needed coordination and progress meetings to focus on 
completed and upcoming work, any construction delays, updating the schedule, proposed 
changes, change orders, contractor’s questions, public relations, safety and other concerns that 
are identified by a project team member.  We will work to foster honest, open communication at 
these weekly meetings which will help in timely resolution of any disputes and potential claims. 
 


Task 7 – Status Reports and Documentation 
 


7a – Reports: It is important to keep the District informed regarding public relations, progress of 
the work and costs of the project.  We will document construction issues with the following: 
Weekly Statement of Working Days, Progress Meeting Minutes, Field Directive Log, change 
order tracking and regular phone calls and e-mails.  
 


7b – Submittal Management: Coastland will coordinate all submittals and monitor the status of 
the submittals to assure the contractor provides timely response.  At the pre-construction 
conference, we will provide the contractor with a log of all required submittals and due dates.   
Submittals will be stamped, logged and distributed to our in-house project engineer that was 
responsible for the design of the project for complete review and approval.  Submittals will be 
filed numerically and approved copies will be distributed to the District, project members, and 
the contractor.  
 


7c – Requests for Information (RFI): Coastland will receive and log all Requests for Information 
(RFI’s) from the contractor, and forward the RFI to the designer.  Coastland will track the status 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 7 


of all RFI’s by generating a weekly RFI log that lists the “Ball-in-court” status, description, and if 
an RFI results in a potential change order.   
 


7d – Change Order Management: In the event that a change order is required, Coastland will 
negotiate the changes with the contractor and prepare documentation.  All changes will be 
approved by the contractor, Coastland and the District prior to starting work on the change.  
With the District’s approval, Coastland can negotiate with the contractor to produce the best 
construction method for the change at the lowest cost.  If a change order requires input from the 
design engineer, our Construction Manager will coordinate with them to ensure it is reviewed.   
A Change Order Log will be created that will show Change Order number, description, status, 
approved date, start and completion dates and cost.  
 
Task 8 – Construction Management 
 


Our goal is to ensure that construction and contract administration are performed in compliance 
with District requirements and the project plans and specifications.  To accomplish this goal, our 
Construction Manager will oversee inspection and manage the day-to-day construction activities 
with the contractor.  He will be accessible to the District at all times.  The Construction Manager 
will be responsible for keeping the District informed of the progress of the project, changes that 
may be needed, pay estimate input and releasing information to the public. Our Construction 
Manager will be available to discuss the best possible options for uncommon situations or 
contractor issues that impact the project.  In addition, our Construction Manager will complete all 
contract administration documentation in a timely, accurate and orderly fashion. 
 
Task 9 – Cost and Schedule Management 
 


Coastland will continually review construction progress and perform field measurements and 
quantity calculations.   Each month Coastland will provide accurate calculations for all work 
items completed and accepted to provide progress payment recommendations to the District.  
Coastland will review the contractor’s progress pay estimate request and schedule of values to 
assess if they are accurate, and will compare this to the field measurements and quantity 
calculations.  Coastland will continually monitor project costs and keep the District informed on a 
regular basis.  
 
Coastland will review the contractor’s construction schedule for accuracy, reasonableness, and 
will verify that it meets the project schedule, order of work, and contract requirements.  Progress 
schedules will be reviewed weekly to ensure the contractor is meeting the critical dates.  If he 
fails to meet critical dates, it will immediately be brought to his attention and remedies to get 
back on schedule will be accomplished.  Schedule updates may be required once a month or 
more.  We will negotiate any time extensions for the contractor due to change orders, weather 
or other delays.  
 
Task 10 - Public Relations and Notifications  
 


To be proactive in eliminating any public concerns, Coastland will ensure every effort is made to 
keep the public informed of construction progress and minimize disruptions to traffic and parking 
throughout the project area. Our Inspector will provide introductions to the public and provide his 
contact phone number to all residents.  Coastland will log and respond to questions and 
concerns from the public in a timely manner and will record the contractor’s activities as they 
relate to public safety and public convenience.  Additionally, Coastland will accurately document 
pre-construction conditions with a photo log to verify the project area is restored to its original 
form following construction.  Our goal is to minimize calls to the District by using our on-site 
inspector / construction manager to respectfully communicate with residents and discuss any 
concerns.  
 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 8 


Task 11 – Conflict Resolution and Claim Management 
 


Coastland’s goal is to avoid all unnecessary claims and resolve conflicts during construction.  
The starting point for avoiding conflicts or notices of potential claims is a clear, biddable set of 
plans and specifications.  To promote effective conflict resolution, our Construction Manager 
and Inspector will become intimately familiar with the project plans, specifications, the District 
Standards, and issues specific to this project.   
 
We will assist in the resolution of conflicts quickly by keeping the lines of communication open, 
and being open and responsive with the contractor.  Progress meetings are important to foster 
communications and to resolve conflicts quickly.  We have found that most conflicts can be 
thoroughly discussed and defused at these meetings.  The key is to foster a good, working 
rapport with the contractor and demonstrate that we are trustworthy, honest and professional 
which Coastland staff currently has with local contractors.   
 
Additionally, Coastland will maintain thorough documentation of the contractor’s field activities 
so that we know exactly what, when, where and why an issue or conflict occurred, and not have 
to rely on memory or the contractor’s version of what happened.   
 
These tasks help reduce the likelihood of change orders during construction or post-
construction claims from the contractor; however, if claims are filed at the completion of the 
project we will have the documentation to assist in any negotiations.    
 
If we cannot successfully facilitate a resolution of a dispute and receive a Notice of Potential 
Claim from the contractor, we will be ready to support the District’s position.  Coastland 
maintains accurate and thoroughly documented project information as backup for claim 
resolution. Coastland will continue facilitating negotiations while tracking and logging all 
correspondence, as-built progress schedules, and other backup documentation. 
 
No work will be performed under this task unless specifically authorized in writing by District 
staff. 
 
Task 12 – Post-Construction Meeting  
 


Following completion of the work, Coastland will organize and conduct the post-construction 
meeting.  The meeting will document all requirements necessary for final closeout and payment, 
and confirm all contract obligations have been met.  Recommendations for improvement will be 
made and incorporated into future projects.  The results of the meeting will be summarized in 
meeting minutes.  
 
Task 13 – Project Closeout  
 


Coastland will help the District comply with all pertinent requirements and verify completion of 
punch list items, obtain closing documentation from permitting agencies, verify mitigation 
measures have been implemented, issue Notice of Completion, prepare recommendations for 
final acceptance of the project, review as-built plans for accuracy and completeness, prepare 
and recommend final payment, and transmit all construction documentation to the District.  At 
the completion of the project, we will provide the District with the following: 
 


    Record drawings (red-lined hard copy on bond) 


    All contract files and records (hard file & electronic) 


    Annotated journal of photos and CD of digital photos 
 


 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 9 


EXCEPTIONS TO SCOPE OF WORK 
 


The following work is not included in our proposal.  However, Coastland would be pleased to 
provide these services if the District desires:  
 


  Environmental determination (other than CATEX) or soil contamination. 


  Geotechnical evaluation. 


  Right-of-way determination or preparation of associated documents. 


  Permitting fees. 


  Potholing of utility locations, associated survey or coordination. 


  Construction staking to be provided by contractor. 
 


SCHEDULE 
 


We understand the District’s goal is to have these projects constructed next season.  After 
assessing the project site, discussing the project with District staff, and considering our specific 
approach to this project, we are confident that our team is able to complete the project and get it to 
bid in the late winter or early spring of 2015, assuming no major changes in the scope of work 
described herein.   
 
Based on our review of the project site, we have estimated a total of 90 working days for 
construction and have prepared our estimate accordingly. This is an average of what we have seen 
from the daily production over the past few years in projects for the District and what we would 
expect for average production rates, given the nature of the project.  We reserve the right to amend 
our estimate for construction management and inspection services once the design has been 
completed if the working days change in the bid documents from our assumption herein. 
 


WORK ESTIMATE - DESIGN 
    
 


Based on our Scope of Work for design services, we have prepared a detailed budget that 
identifies staffing rates, total cost per task, and direct expenses.  As can be seen in the work 
estimate, we are proposing that the services associated with the design work for this project be 
completed for a not-to-exceed fee of $75,181 (see following Work Estimate).  This amount 
assumes all of the work for this project will fall under the Scope of Work described in our 
proposal.   
 
Please also note that in the not-to-exceed amount, we have included an estimated amount of 
$1,174 for reimbursable expenses (i.e. printing, plotting, mileage, final mylars, copies and 
binding).  These reimbursable costs will be billed at cost plus 15%. 
 
The above fee quotation should be considered a negotiable offer.  If the District wishes to 
modify the proposed Scope of Work, we would be happy to discuss such a change and how it 
would affect the overall project cost.  We can either discuss amendments to the existing Scope 
or provide these services on a time and materials basis per our adopted schedule of hourly 
rates and then modify the Work Estimate accordingly. 
 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 10 


WORK ESTIMATE - CONSTRUCTION 
  
Based on a preliminary review of the project, we estimate the project duration to last 
approximately 90 working days.  Note that this is an average of what we would anticipate for a 
project of this complexity and what has actually been experienced over the last few years with 
projects in the District.  As can be seen on the attached Work Estimate sheet, our efforts include 
part-time construction management and full-time inspection.  Our proposal does not include any 
overtime work, nor work for more than one inspector during the day.  Our proposal also includes 
factors such as attending meetings, project closeout and vehicle costs.  Based on these 
assumptions, we propose that the work associated with the Construction Observation portion of 
this project can be provided on a time and materials basis for a not-to exceed fee of $135,997 
(see following work estimate).  
 
Please note that the number of working days was determined based on our best estimate of the 
project at this time.  During the design of the project, additional information may come up that 
may change this estimate. If this occurs, we reserve the right to make modifications to our 
estimate based on the number of days determined after completion of the design.  At that time, 
we can provide the district with any modifications that may be needed prior to award of the 
construction contract so it can be done simultaneously. 
 
Also, please note that if the contract time extends beyond 90 working days (due to the inability 
of the contractor to complete the work in a timely manner), or the scope or level of services 
change, our costs may also increase.  Similarly, if the contract time is reduced, charges will 
decrease accordingly.  We propose to re-evaluate this Work Estimate after the design is 
complete and the actual contract time is determined. 
 
 







 


 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 11 


Principal Supervisin Assistant CAD Admin Const Total Total Subconsultant / 


Task Engineer Engineer Engineer Designer Manag


# $175 $163 $125 $140 $75 $140 Hours Cost Notes 


1 Meeting with District    


Kick Off Meeting (1) 4 4 8 $1,260


Progress Design Review (3) 12 12 24 $3,780


Subtotal 32 $5,040


2 Background Information


Background Mapping 1 12 13 $1,855


Field Review with District 4 4 8 $1,260


Photo Log 1 8 9 $1,175


Subtotal 30 $4,290


3 Coordination with Agencies


Coordination with Utility Companies 1 4 5 $735


Coordination with County/SCWA 6 2 8 $1,330


CEQA Notice of Exemption 1 2 1 4 $530


Subtotal 17 $2,595


4 Surveying


Topographic Survey - Canyon One Rd. $16,417 Cinquini & Passarino


Coordination with Surveyor 2 8 10 $1,470


Subtotal 10 $17,887


5 65%  Submittal


Improvement Plans 24 108 132 $19,320  


Preliminary Specifications 4 8 12 $1,700


Preliminary Cost Estimate 2 8 10 $1,470


QC Review/Value Engineering 4 8 4 16 $2,564  


Subtotal 170 $25,054


6 95%  Submittal


Improvement Plan Revisions 8 54 62 $8,960


Specifications 4 2 6 $950


Cost Estimate 1 4 5 $735


QC Review/Constructability Review 2 4 4 10 $1,562


Subtotal 83 $12,207


7 100%  Submittal


Final Documents 4 20 24 $3,500


Subtotal 24 $3,500


8 Bid Support


Addendum/questions during bid 4 4 2 10 $1,410


Notice to bidders/advertisement 4 6 10 $1,150


Bid Opening attendance 2 2 $350


Bid analysis/recommendation 3 3 $525


Subtotal 3 $3,435


Miscellaneous Costs $1,174
Es t mileage , pho to s , 


repro ductio n, mylars


Total Hours 98 12 18 246 9 8 391


Total Cost $17,150 $1,956 $2,250 $34,440 $675 $1,120 $75,181


WORK ESTIMATE


FY 2015 Projects - Overall Project 


Canyon One Road
Sweetwater Springs Water DistrictProposal for Design Services


Task Description


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2016 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 12 


CM Inspector
Principal 


Engr.
Admin


$140 $115 $175 $75


1a (700) Contract Award 2 4 6 $980


1b (700) Design Support During Construction 8 2 10 $1,550


2 (700) Pre-Construction Meeting 4 4 4 12 $1,320


3 (700) Pre-conSite Visit & Documentation 2 6 8 $970


4 (700) Project Start-Up 8 8 2 8 26 $2,990


5 (702) Daily Field Inspection 557 557 $64,055 Based on 90 working days


6 (702) Progress Meetings & Coordination 18 18 36 $4,590 Assumes 6 meetings


7 (704) Status Reports & Documentation 18 32 3 53 $6,425 Review of progress/documentation


7a  (704)         Reports 22 45 2 69 $8,405 Status / Daily Reports 


7b (704)        Submittal Management 12 10 2 24 $2,980 Based on 12 Submittals


7c  (704)         Requests For Information 6 6 1 13 $1,605 Based on 2 RFI's


7d (704)         Change Order Management 6 6 1 13 $1,605 Based on 2 change orders 


8 (704) Construction Management 79 79 $11,060 Misc CM tasks


9 (704) Cost and Schedule Management 15 12 27 $3,480 Based on 5 monthly payments


10 (710) Public Relations / Notifications 20 16 36 $4,640 Notices / phone calls


11 (710) Conflict Resolution 0 $0 T&M as needed 


12 (710) Post Construction Meeting 4 6 10 $1,250 Walk through


13 (710) Project Closeout 25 12 4 41 $5,180 As-builts / files


Bid Advertisement Distribution $850 $850 Bid plan sets (30) & advertisement


Photographs & video $50 $50


Vehicle expenses $12,012 $12,012 858 hours x $14/hr=$12,012.00


Total Hours 241 738 14 27 1,020


Project Total $33,740 $84,870 $2,450 $2,025 $12,912 $135,997


1


2


3


NOTES:
Based on an estimated 90 working days  (our work ing day estimate will be refined following completion of PS&E)


Based on full time inspection at 40 hours per week and part-time construction management of 12.5 hours a week.


Based on an estimated number of RFI's, change orders and submittals shown above.


TASK INFORMATION BILLING INFORMATION HOURS AND COST INFORMATION


Task No. 
(Coastland Code)


Task Information
Direct                           


Costs


Total            


Hours


Total 


Costs
Comments 


WORK ESTIMATE


FY 2015 CIP 
PROPOSAL FOR CONSTRUCTION 


Sweetwater Springs Water District
MANAGEMENT & INSPECTION 


 





		Item V-C - Res 14-19, Contract with Coastland for 2016 CIP

		Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 



		Item V-C.1 - RES 14-19 Engineering Services for CIP 2016

		Item V-C.2 Coastland 2016 CIP Proposal






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE: SALES CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 
17448 RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE, WITH THE RUSSIAN RIVER RECREATION AND PARKS 
DISTRICT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the progress of the sale of the 17448 
River Land parcel to the Russian River Recreation and Parks District (RRR&PD). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Agreed upon sales price is $60,000.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Herman Hernandez of the RRR&PD informed me on September 23 that RRR&PD has retained an 
attorney to review the proposed easement and that he will get back to me when that review is 
completed and discussed by their Board.     








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 2, 2014  
 
Subject:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 14-21, APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT WITH OPEN SPATIAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR A 
HOSTED GIS AND RELATED SERVICES FOR MAPPING OF DISTRICT 
FACILITIES  


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-21 which approves an 
agreement with Open Spatial Corporation to provide professional services for a 
hosted GIS and related services for mapping District facilities and authorizes the 
General Manager to sign.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The Open Spatial proposal would cost $13,775 for the first year 
and $4,200 per year in following years.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For some time the District has discussed accumulating all District mapped data into one 
workable format that would allow reasonable access and real-time updating.  The District has 
a relatively large annual capital project and several smaller in-house capital projects each 
year.  We have some level of mapping (on the wall, for example) but we know much of that 
information is incorrect and the hard copy representations don’t get updated frequently.   
 
The proposal by Open Spatial provides a web-based geographical information system (GIS) 
that allows District staff online access, including production of maps and frequent updating of 
existing information when projects are completed or when staff find and correct mapped 
data.  The proposed cost for these services are quite reasonable when one considers that 
there is no cost for software – Autocad has substantial seat licenses, no cost for staff trained 
in Autocad or other similar software, no costs for hardware – typically a workstation is 
needed for this. The proposal includes training for District staff.   
 
The proposal provided by Open Spatial (Exhibit A) has a listed cost of $13,775 for the first 
year including annual maintenance costs of $4200.  The quoted cost does not include staff 
time – entering into this agreement implies a commitment by the District to help Open Spatial 
get the initial mapping done and then implies a commitment by District staff to use the 
product.  We are quoted a “light” version of their products; it’s quite possible that if we find 
these products are very useful, we’ll want more robust versions.  It’s also possible that the 
District will need more than the allowed amount of maintenance hours; the proposal includes 
the billing rate for those additional services.   
 







RESOLUTION 14-21 Open Spatial Proposal for Hosted GIS 2  
October 2, 2014 
 


 


Staff have had 3 meetings with Open Spatial regarding this proposal.  At the last meeting on 
September 22, the meeting was attended by the General Manager Steve Mack, 
Administrative Manager Julie Kenny, Field Manager Kevin Gilman, Senior Crew Supervisor 
Keith McDonald, and Joe Machado, an engineer with Coastland Engineering.  All were 
impressed with various aspects of the proposal, were skeptical that the proposed work would 
be done for the proposed cost and supportive of moving forward with this project (many 
clarifying questions to the Open Spatial team in this regard).  We realize that updated, correct 
mapping of the District facilities is important, that the historical knowledge of District staff 
needs to be documented, and that this approach appears to be a good way to do it.  One 
important aspect of the Open Spatial proposal – if we work with this firm for a year or so and 
find that it doesn’t work for us, the work done is the property of the District – it’s not lost effort.   
 
I called Purissima Hills Water District, one of the listed references in the proposal and a water 
district of similar size to us, about their experience.  The General Manager there was very 
positive in his response – costs have been in line with their agreement and the Open Spatial 
staff are very easy to work with and helpful, and the product is very useful in their work.   
 
The funds required for this agreement are not in the FY 2015 Budget.  However, the costs 
are reasonable and can be easily covered by District Reserves if savings are not achieved in 
the approved Budget.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 14-21.   







RESOLUTION 14-21 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


WITH OPEN SPATIAL CORPORATION FOR A HOSTED GIS OF DISTRICT FACILITIES 


AND RELATED SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District has undertaken a large capital faclities 


improvement effort in the past few years and has a need for continual updating of the digital 
mapping of District facilities as these projects are completed, new capital projects are started, 
and specific map products are needed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the professional services needed for this work is beyond the capabilities of 
existing staff and hiring in-house staff for this kind of work is impractical; and 
 
 WHEREAS, District staff have been in discussions with Open Spatial Corporation 
staff for providing an Internet based hosted GIS that incorporates all existing information 
into a digital mapping of District facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, access to this mapping effort will be online and available to District 
staff without purchase of additional hardware and sofware; and: 
 


WHEREAS, Open Spatial has provided the District with a proposal for their 
services (Exhibit A) which is very reasonable for the scope of the services; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed this proposal and finds it responsive to the District’s 
need for digital mapping services.   
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The Agreement for a Web hosted GIS mapping solution, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved in the sum of $13,775; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
October 2, 2014, by the following vote: 
 







Resolution 14-21. Agreement for Professional Services with Open Spatial 
October 2, 2014          2 
 


 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle       


 
 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Web hosted GIS mapping solution 


Prepared by: 
Open Spatial Corporation 


September 2014 


www.openspatial.com 


Exhibit A







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 2 of 10 


 


Table of Contents 
 


1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................3 


2. Solution provided ....................................................................................................................4 


3. Project stages ...........................................................................................................................5 


4. Pricing .....................................................................................................................................5 


4.1 Expected costs for Sweetwater Springs WD: .............................................................5 


4.2 Terms: ........................................................................................................................6 


5. About Open Spatial .................................................................................................................7 


5.1 Summary of Open Spatial product offerings .............................................................8 


5.2 Sample of Open Spatial customers in the region ......................................................9 


5.3 Contact information ..................................................................................................9 


6. Appendix A: Signature page ....................................................................................................10 


  
 
Revisions 


Version Date Description Author 
v1.0 September 22, 2014 Initial proposal  Colin Hobson 
v1.1 September 23, 2014 Added a section for the Terms,  


Added Appendix A – Signature page 
Colin Hobson 


v1.11 September 24, 2014 Included current standard hourly rates in 
the terms 


Colin Hobson 


    


    


 







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 3 of 10 


1. Introduction  


 
Sweetwater Springs WD (SSWD) provides water distribution services to five townships 
adjacent to the Russian River in the Guerneville, CA area. Approximately 3,600 
connections are serviced from water supply drawn from wells. Currently Sweetwater 
Springs WD does not have a GIS, and outsource all of their CAD work to engineering firms, 
who have drawings of the water system in various states of completion. 
 
This proposal is for the provision of a web hosted GIS mapping system and services to 
build out a complete data set of the water distribution system assets and primary attributes 
over time. Open Spatial has off the shelf data models and applications that provide a high 
level of tried and tested functionality for public works and utility districts and divisions. 
These applications are used by many organizations in-house and also by Open Spatial itself 
to rapidly build out a database driven GIS asset inventory and map. Open Spatial affords 
the ability of smaller customers to get high end services and functionality on a budget 
appropriate to small organizations. Using the services and hosted software from Open 
Spatial will enable the ongoing completion of a good asset inventory and map that is 
attributed, connected and modelling ready. This assures the recording and transfer of 
institutional knowledge while also building out the asset inventory as advised by the EPA. 
 
With this system Sweetwater Springs WD personnel will be able to login and view the 
districts asset inventory for the water distribution system from any computer on the web. 
Users will be able to search, query, view attributes and perform trace and break analysis. 
Primary asset information where available such as ID, diameter, material, age and 
connectivity can be displayed as needed. Data quality and completeness will be improved 
on an ongoing basis by red-lining markups directly on the web map which Open Spatial 
will then capture once verified. Open Spatial recommends a support and services contract 
of 2 hours per month for Open Spatial to update the base map as requested and/or as per 
markups submitted. 
 
The system provides a good starting point that enables the base data to be improved and 
updated. It is also a scalable solution such that additional functionality can be added as 
and when needed. Such as linking to work order system and/or billing systems for 
example.  
 


  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 4 of 10 


2. Solution provided 


Open Spatial will provide a web hosted solution that would include and/or support the 
following functionality: 


• Provision of a server and web mapping application with login/user access control 


• The creation of a connected attributed pipe/node network of sewer and water data 
(based on the current data as provided by Sweetwater Springs WD).   


• Web based maps and interface to the Sweetwater Springs WD asset information 


• Web forms and advanced forms (drill down, traverse diverse databases, filter and 
search, zoom to any asset on the map). 


• Configurable editing of attribute/form data 


• Browser based redlining and mark-ups with comments 


• Browser based network tracing for trace and break analysis with pass through 
capability, reporting and mail merge capability (where data is provided and 
configured) 


• Listing and linking of as-built documents as captured 


• Monthly support and data updating services (from red-line markups, paper and/or 
digital) 


 


 


Optional additional functionality available as needed/selected: 


• High resolution plot/print from the browser through plot templates  


• Linked photo’s and other documents to any asset or data record 


• Data integration framework for easy configuration of links within the core data and 
with data in other systems, including work order management systems and billing 
systems  


• Addition of mobile/tablet based  data viewing and updating solution (*additional 
fees apply) 


• Data and system can be moved on-site onto customers intranet if desired 
(*additional fees apply) 


 


  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 5 of 10 


3. Project stages  


The project will have 3 stages. The stages and expected timing is listed in the table below. 
 


Project stage Expected duration 


Setup and preparation 8 Weeks 


Training  2 days 


Deployment and usage Ongoing after training 


 
 


4. Pricing 


The proposed solution for Sweetwater Springs WD includes the initial conversion and 
loading of the existing mapped information from CAD drawings into one single database. 
This proposal assumes that this data is fairly well drawn/captured and fairly complete with 
basic information (diameter and material) and covers the full extent of the districts 
jurisdiction. While the real world location and attributes of this data will not be validated 
by Open Spatial, the use of it as-is to load into the system is recommended. Scanned as-
built data will be used as needed and referenced in the system as the project progresses. 
 


4.1 Expected costs for Sweetwater Springs WD: 


In summary, the costs for the project are expected to be: 


 Initial setup, data loading, install and training     $9,575 


  


Annual subscription fee enlighten light (3 user logins)   $2,400 


 (i.e.  $200/month) 


 Expert Services – 2 hours per month. Annual cost     $1,800 


  (GIS analysts, data capture specialists, IT, Industry specialists) 


  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 6 of 10 


 


4.2 Terms: 


• Services costs for initial setup, data loading, install and training will be billed in two 
parts - at the 50% stage and 100% stage. 


• 100% stage will be once the client is provided with user login information and initial 
training is done.  This will be the commencement date for the annual contract. 


• Software subscription is an annual contract, and will be billed at least 30 days 
before it is due each year. 


• Services contract is an annual contract, hours do not accrue beyond each year. 
Services will be billed at least 30 days before due, each year. 


• Payment terms are: Net 30 days. 


• Open Spatial will provide all hardware, software and services as outlined in this 
proposal. This is included in the subscription cost.  


• Open Spatial will provide a web solution with a guaranteed minimum of 95% up 
time per month. 


• Water asset inventory data remains the property of SSWD. Open Spatial will 
provide a copy, of the database and/or a CAD drawing with attributes, of the asset 
data at system deployment, decommissioning and when requested by SSWD. 
Requests for the data exceeding once per quarter will be done but will use 
consulting time. 


• SSWD can choose not to renew the annual contract at any time. Payments made are 
however not refundable as Open Spatial has had to provision for the hardware, 
software and staffing ahead of time. 


• Additional user logins can be provided. Costs will be as per Open Spatial standard 
pricing at the time. 


• Additional services (over and above those included in the annual contract) are 
available on a time and materials basis, or can be quoted individually on a per task 
basis prior to commencement. Costs will be as per Open Spatial standard pricing at 
the time. The current standard rate structure on a per hour basis is: 


o Data capture and CAD work $75/hr 


o GIS, reporting and customer support $100/hr 


o IT, Analyst and DBA work for complex/custom technical or programming 
tasks varies from $150 to $200/hr 


• The solution is fully functional as an off-the-shelf suite of applications. That, 
combined with the many years of industry experience and technical expertise is 
what enables Open Spatial to offer an easy to use, cost effective solution that 
includes a deep set of functionality. The solution is scalable and additional 
functionality can be added/selected as and when needed.  


  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 7 of 10 


 


5. About Open Spatial 


Open Spatial specializes in providing World-Class Spatial Solutions to Utilities and Local and 
Central Government. Our Solutions are based on Open Geospatial compliant technologies 
through partnerships with Oracle and Autodesk. Our Open Geospatial Solutions are in use at over 
100 authorities worldwide. Since 1994, we have delivered software and services that have 
improved productivity and efficiencies to engineering, planning and geospatial managers. 
Open Spatial is a trusted geospatial solutions provider to Local and Central Government.  
  
Our solutions bridge the gap between engineering and geospatial data custodians.  The focus on 
rules based disciplines assures data quality and integrity.  The shared engineering/geospatial 
database between departments is a collaborative environment that is accurate and current.  Our 
focus on data quality improves your ability to make better decisions.  Our Asset Decision Support 
System that integrates with property, asset management, records management, is delivered 
enterprise wide, from the one stop shop customer service to the inspectors in the field. 
 
Open Spatial is a leading supplier of Geospatial Engineering Solutions to Utilities (water, sewer, 
electricity, gas and Telco).  Our solutions focus on the business problems facing each discipline 
within the industry.  Such as the efficient management of assets, operational management, 
meeting regulatory reporting requirements, and improving business process efficiency with better 
data management, anywhere and anytime. 
 
Our customers rely on our Asset Information and Decision Support Solutions to create and deliver 
accurate, reliable and timely geospatial engineering information that is integrated with corporate 
data and corporate applications.  Our solution includes powerful off the shelf editing applications 
that run on AutoCAD on the desktop and browser based, easy to use data publishing and 
distribution frameworks that are equally used by staff in the office and those in the field. In 
addition we provide an integrated Field intelligence framework for mobile solutions. Our solution 
suite assists staff to improve the quality and speed of their decision making while also improving 
operational efficiencies. 
 
  
Product purchasing models provided by Open Spatial 
The various Open Spatial products are typically available for purchase off the shelf using any of 
the following 3 approaches:  
- Purchase: Traditional up front purchase with an annual upgrade subscription 
- Annual contract: Purchase of a renewable annual usage contract  
- Hosted: Hosted/Cloud provision, either on-site or in the cloud 
 
 
  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 8 of 10 


5.1 Summary of Open Spatial product offerings 


 


Product Purpose Description 
 


 
Munsys Asset 


Intelligence (Ai) 
 


Edit and Maintain spatial 
data in AutoCAD. 
Data Models for storing 
engineering asset 
information is a single 
central database. 


Rich editing applications that run on 
AutoCAD and provide purpose built 
functionality and business rules for 
Water, Sewer, Storm, Electrical, 
Cadastral and more 


 


 
Enlighten Business 


Intelligence (Bi) 


Publishing and sharing 
interface for map and asset 
data via the internet or 
intranet  


A map centric visualization portal that 
incorporates all types of geospatial, 
engineering and corporate data. 
Access to data is provided through an 
internet browser. Data is consolidated 
from many corporate repositories and 
presented in a single application. 
 


 


 
Cloud Intelligence (Ci) 


 


Scalable delivery of all 
geospatial and engineering 
resources 


On demand access to editing resources 
that keep engineering, asset, and 
geospatial data up to date.  


 


 
Design Intelligence (Di) 


Automation of electronic 
digital design and direct data 
extraction and integration 
into enterprise data stores. 


The Design Intelligence Di Suite 
automates the import of As-Built 
drawings into any GIS and Asset 
Management system concurrently.  It 
provides an easy to use user interface 
for the configuration of attribute rules 
and engineering geometric validation.  
Plans can be checked prior to 
submission and the plan check process 
can be automated and tracked. 


 


 
Field Intelligence (Fi) 


Provide location aware maps 
and forms in the field on a 
variety of lightweight and/or 
ruggedized mobile devices. 


Field Intelligence knows where mobile 
staff is at all times and whether they 
are in an isolated location or by 
themselves. When integrated with 
common work order management 
systems Open Spatial Fi is an essential 
work companion on the move. 


 
  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 9 of 10 


 


 


5.2 Sample of Open Spatial customers in the region 


The following customers of Open Spatial are located in and around the bay area or west coast. 
 


City and County of San Francisco 
City of Vallejo 
San Francisco International Airport 
Purissima Hills Water District (Los Altos, CA) 
City of Albany 
County of Solano 
County of Sacramento 
City of Garden Grove 
Olivehurst Public Utilities District 
City of Medford, OR 
 
 


 


5.3 Contact information 


 


5701 Lonetree Blvd, Suite 211 


Rocklin, CA 95765 


 


1-800-696-1238 


 


Further information is available at www.openspatial.com 
  







Sweetwater Springs WD 
 


Web hosted GIS solution 
Commercial in Confidence 
Page 10 of 10 


6. Appendix A: Signature page 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
September 24, 2014 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Sweetwater Springs Water District  
17081 California Hwy 116  
Guerneville, CA 95446 
Tel: (707) 869-4000 
 
RE: Hosted GIS solution and services for Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
Open Spatial is pleased to provide the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) with this proposal for our 
hosted GIS solution and services for small water districts. The solution, functionality and services as detailed 
in the proposal, focus on providing a hosted web based water specific GIS interface, an initial asset inventory 
map and expert services for updating the inventory on an ongoing basis.  
 
We are requesting sign-off on the terms and approval to commence with the project. 
 


 
 
 
Sincerely, 


 
 
Colin Hobson 
Director, North America 
Open Spatial Corporation 
chobson@openspatial.com 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Directors:  W Skerrett, JW Nel, C Hobson 


Terms accepted for SSWD by: 
 
 
 
 


Signature: _______________________________    
 
 
 


Date: __________________ 
 
 
 


Name printed:____________________________ 
 
 
 


Title: ___________________________________ 
 
 


 


Open Spatial Corporation 
5701 Lonetree Blvd, Suite 211 
Rocklin, CA 95765 





		Item V-E - Res 14-21, Agmt with Open Spatial for Hosted GIS

		Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 



		Item V-E.1 - RES 14-21 Open Spatial Agmt

		Item V-E.2 Open Spatial Proposal and Agmt






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 2, 2014  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August was 24,091 units (55.3 AF, Monte 


Rio cycle) and production was 73.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were lower (60.0 AF and 88.0 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage decreased to 
23.0%, as shown in Figure 1.  That’s our best number yet and continues a positive trend.   
As Figure 1A shows, the improvement is with the Guerneville system which is 
encouraging.  


 
3. Leaks:  In August we had 16 total leaks and spent 52 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and fewer man-
hours compared to August one year ago (7 leaks, 92 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service 
and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.  We’re heading in the wrong 
direction for this, but perhaps the fixing of leaks is contributing to the good trend in water 
leakage.   


 
4. Flow at Hacienda: Figure 3 shows the flow in the Russian River this spring compared to 


last year, 2009 and the 2000-2008 average.  2009 was a similarly dry year, last year had a 
historically dry January through the summer, and the 2000-2008 average was the former 
standard for summer flow but we will likely not see that again.  Mid-summer flows are 
looking very similar to last year, but that will likely change with the Temporary Urgency 
Change request approved by the State Board.  Figure 3 has been changed to a more 
compressed vertical axis to better show these lower flows.          


 
5. 2015 CIP:   Piazza Construction started work on the 2015 CIP the week of July 29 and is 


making good progress.             
 


6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   Two toilet rebates were approved in 
September.  A preliminary update on the Direct Install Program accounting numbers is the 
same as last month: 25 direct install toilets in 2013 (16 customers) and 8 in 2014 (5 
customers).  We did not get information on how many have been approved but not 
completed or are on a wait list.   The grant for additional funding should have formal 
approval in October.                 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
October 2, 2014 
 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There was one in-house project reported for 
September.  Staff relocated a meter on at a location on Hwy 116 (4 hours).  An in-house 
construction project not yet completed is placement of a temporary tank at the 
Schoeneman Tank site off Laurel Road in Guerneville.  The current Schoeneman Tank 
which is plastic and has approximately 8,000 gallons of usable storage, has sprung a leak.  
Staff have installed another plastic tank, approximately 5,000 gallons storage, next to the 
current tank.  Staff is considering alternatives for replacing the failing tank – perhaps 
another 5,000 gallon plastic tank.  The long-term goal has been a permanent 30,000-
40,000 gallon tank combined with replacement/upgrading of the mainline and services with 
the financial participation of parcel owners wanting water service in the area.   


 
8. Gantt Chart:   In the Gantt Chart for October we have ongoing work for the 2015 CIP 


which is happening and start of design for the 2016 CIP.  The proposal for engineering 
services for 2016 CIP (Canyon One Road in Rio Nido) is on the agenda for this meeting.    


 
 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
October 2, 2014 
 


Figure 1A.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving Averages, SSWD 
Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


May-
10


Jul-
10


Sep-
10


Nov-
10


Jan-
11


Mar-
11


May-
11


Jul-
11


Sep-
11


Nov-
11


Jan-
12


Mar-
12


May-
12


Jul-
12


Sep-
12


Nov-
12


Jan-
13


Mar-
13


May-
13


Jul-
13


Sep-
13


Nov-
13


Jan-
14


Mar-
14


May-
14


Jul-
14


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


c
ti


o
n


 (
A


F
)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
s


t


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 5 
October 2, 2014 
 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2014 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated September 24, 2014


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


1-
M


ay


8-
M


ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay


5-
Ju


n


12
-J


un


19
-J


un


26
-J


un
3-


Ju
l


10
-J


ul


17
-J


ul


24
-J


ul


31
-J


ul


7-
Aug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug


4-
Sep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-


Oct


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2013


2014


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP
        2015 CIP Construction Starts
        2016 CIP Design
        2016 CIP Award of Contract
        2016 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-14
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: October 2, 2014 



